
 

                   AGENDA FOR SPECIAL MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2010    Page 1  of  2 
 

 
P.O. BOX 675 ▪ 61750 CHOLLITA ROAD ▪ JOSHUA TREE ▪ CALIFORNIA 92252 

TELEPHONE (760) 366-8438    FAX (760) 366-9528    E-MAIL  jbwd@jbwd.com 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY JUNE 9, 2010 7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 6. ADMINISTRATION OF OATH OF OFFICE FOR NEW DIRECTOR 
 

 
Pages 1-3 
Page     4 
Pages 5-6 
Pages 7-34 
Pages 35-36 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of May 11, 2010 
B. Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of May 19, 2010 
C. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 19, 2010 
D. Approve Financial Report for March 2010 
E. Approve Resolution 10-XXX Authorizing Signers at US Bank 

 
Pages 37-38 8. RESOLUTION 10-XXX ACKNOWLEDGING MOJAVE WATER AGENCY FOR 

ACHIEVING ITS GOLDEN ANNIVERSARY, 50 YEARS OF SERVICE 
Recommend that the Board approve Resolution #10-XXX 
 

Pages 39-58 9. 2010/2011 AND 2011/2012 2-YEAR BUDGET DISCUSSION 
Recommend that the Board receive information, discuss any changes, adopt 2-year 
budget if desired. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

                   AGENDA FOR SPECIAL MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2010    Page 2  of  2 
 

Page    59 10. STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP 
Recommend that the Board set a date for the workshop and authorize staff to retain a 
facilitator at a cost not to exceed $2,500 
 

 11. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 12. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 13. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 14. CLOSED SESSION 
Conference with labor negotiator regarding General Unit; pursuant to Government 
Code 54957.6.  District negotiator:  Joe Guzzetta 
 

 15. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
The Board of Directors reserves the right to take action on items reserved for discussion only.  
INFORMATION 
During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your 
information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and appreciates 
your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone 
Joshua Basin Water District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a 
disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 
92252 during normal business hours. 



 

1                                                 Special Meeting of May 11, 2010 

 
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

May 11, 2010 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER    6:00 PM 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: By roll-call: 
       Bill Long  Present 
       Mickey Luckman Present 
       Mike Reynolds Present 
       Gary Wilson  Absent 
 
 
 STAFF PRESENT:   Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
      Susan Greer Assistant GM/Controller 
      Terry Spurrier, HR/Administrative Services Supervisor 
      Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 
  
 GUESTS: 10   
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Long/Reynolds 3/0 (1 Absent) to approve the agenda for the May 11, 2010 Special Meeting of the 

Board of Directors. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
6. CLOSED SESSION 
 Conference with labor negotiator regarding General Unit; pursuant to Government Code 

54957.6.  District negotiator:  Joe Guzzetta 
The Board went to Closed Session at 6:02 pm.   
Open Session resumed at 7:05 pm.   
President Luckman stated that no reportable action had been taken during the Closed Session discussion. 
 
7. BOARD AND CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE WORKSHOP TO DISCUSS CRISIS 

COMMUNICATIONS AND EMERGENCY PLANS 
General Manager Guzzetta introduced Rick Cook, the District’s Emergency Services Coordinator, and 

Kathleen Radnich who is the Public Outreach consultant.  Mr. Cook gave a Power Point 
presentation showing some of the damage done by the recent earthquake in Mexicali.  He reported 
that he and District staff are planning for an emergency exercise in June. The District could host a 
“disaster fair” in the fall; it would be open to the public. Vendors of disaster preparedness products 
would be invited to show their products, as well as representatives from emergency response 
organizations such as fire and sheriff departments. 

 
 

Page 1 of 59



 

2                                                 Special Meeting of May 11, 2010 

 
Kathleen Radnich showed a video that portrayed proper and improper communication methods with the 

media following a crisis. Planning for crisis and emergency communications is an important part 
of disaster planning. 

 
8. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Long/Reynolds 3/0 (1 Absent) to approve the Minutes of the Special Meeting of March 24, 2010 

and to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 7, 2010. 
 
9. EXTENDED WARRANTY FOR LARGE EMERGENCY GENERATORS 
GM Guzzetta reported that the District had only a limited time to purchase the extended warrantees for 

the two 600-kilowatt emergency generators. Considering the relative cost for repairs, staff had 
purchased the warrantees. Staff had understood that the purchase order could be cancelled if 
necessary.  

MSC Long/Reynolds 3/0 (1 Absent) to approve staff recommendation to ratify the purchase of 5-year 
extended warrantees for the two 600 KW emergency generators at a cost of just under $10,000. 

 
10. RESOLUTION #10-856 SUPPORTING THE SUBMITTAL OF A GRANT PROPOSAL TO 

THE BUREAU OF RECLAMATION FOR A PIPELINE AND GROUNDWATER 
RECHARGE FACILITY 

GM Guzzetta reported that the grant proposal had recently been submitted to the Bureau of Reclamation; 
the last requirement for the proposal is the resolution of the Board supporting it. The Board took 
the following action: 

MSC Reynolds/Long 3/0 (1 Absent) to approve staff recommendation to adopt Resolution #10-856 
Supporting the Submittal of a Grant Proposal to the Bureau of Reclamation for a Pipeline and 
Groundwater Recharge Facility. 

 
11. SPONSORSHIP OF JOSHUA TREE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE MIXER 
GM Guzzetta reported that the Chamber of Commerce had requested that the District host a mixer on the 

27th of this month at the demonstration garden. The garden was only recently completed and this 
will be a good opportunity for more community members to tour and appreciate it. 

MSC Long/Reynolds 3/0 (1 Absent) to approve staff recommendation to sponsor the May 27th Joshua 
Tree Chamber of Commerce mixer at the Joshua Tree Water-Wise Demonstration Garden. 

 
12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
13. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
GM Guzzetta reported that staff is seeking grant funds for the Recharge project; a grant proposal was 

submitted to the Bureau of Reclamation and another proposal will be submitted to the 
Environmental Protection Agency.  

The General Manager has been working with the District engineer and Hi-Desert Medical Center to plan 
for a package wastewater treatment plant that will be needed for the medical center’s proposed 
expansion. 

 
14. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Director Reynolds stated that he attended the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) Spring 

Conference and was impressed with the information that he gained there; he will discuss the 
conference further at the next meeting. President Luckman stated that she also attended the 
ACWA conference and received much valuable information. 

 

Page 2 of 59



 

3                                                 Special Meeting of May 11, 2010 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
MSC Long/Reynolds 3/0 (1 Absent) to adjourn the May 11, 2010 Special Meeting of the Board of 

Directors. 
 
Respectfully submitted; 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
 
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for May 19, 2010. 

Page 3 of 59



 

1                                                 Special Meeting of May 19, 2010 

 
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

May 19, 2010 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER    6:00 PM 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: By roll-call: 
       Bill Long  Present 
       Mickey Luckman Present 
       Mike Reynolds Present 
       Gary Wilson  Present 
 
 STAFF PRESENT:   Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
      Susan Greer Assistant GM/Controller 
      Terry Spurrier, HR/Administrative Services Supervisor 
 
  
 GUESTS:    
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Long/Reynolds 4/0 to approve the agenda for the May 19, 2010 Special Meeting of the Board of 

Directors. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
6. CLOSED SESSION 
 Conference with labor negotiator regarding General Unit; pursuant to Government Code 

54957.6.  District negotiator:  Joe Guzzetta 
The Board went to Closed Session at 6:02 pm.   
Open Session resumed at 6:45 pm.  President Luckman stated that no reportable action had been taken 

during the Closed Session discussion. 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 6:45 PM 
MSC Long/Reynolds 4/0 to adjourn the May 19, 2010 Special Meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
Respectfully submitted; 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
 
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for June 2, 2010. 

Page 4 of 59



 

1                                                 Regular Meeting of May 19, 2010 

 
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

May 19, 2010 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER    7:00 PM 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: By roll-call: 
       Bill Long  Present 
       Mickey Luckman Present 
       Mike Reynolds Present 
       Gary Wilson  Present 
 
 STAFF PRESENT:   Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
      Susan Greer Assistant GM/Controller 
      Terry Spurrier, HR/Administrative Services Supervisor 
      Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 
 GUESTS:   8 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Long/Reynolds 4/0 to approve the agenda for the May 19, 2010 Regular Meeting of the Board of 

Directors. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
6. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR 
General Manager Guzzetta gave a staff report noting that three applications have been received for the 

vacant board position from Linda Fisher, Robert Johnson, and Steven Whitman.  Mr. Johnson sent 
notice that his job requires him to be out of town this week and therefore he is unable to attend the 
meeting. 

The Board proceeded with the interview of the two candidates present. Board discussion ensued and the 
following action was taken: 

MSC Long/Reynolds 3/1 to appoint Steven Whitman to the position of director of Joshua Basin Water 
District. 

   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye 
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 
7. CONSIDER EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT WITH PUBLIC INFORMATION 

CONSULTANT PENDING APPROVAL OF THE 2010/2011 BUDGET 
Assistant General Manager/Controller Susan Greer reported that the public information consultant had 

been working under a six month agreement and $25,000 budget approved by the Board.  The six 
months are almost up; however less than half the budget has been used. Public Information 
consultant Kathleen Radnich reviewed public outreach efforts since December 2009. 

Page 5 of 59



 

2                                                 Regular Meeting of May 19, 2010 

MSC Long/Reynolds 3/1 to approve staff recommendation to approve extension of agreement with 
Kathleen Radnich pending approval of the 2010/2011 budget. 

   Long  Aye 
   Luckman Aye 
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 
8. PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 
GM Guzzetta reported that electrical work for Well 16 is complete and the well is ready to go online after 

final reports are submitted to the state health department. A pipeline replacement design project 
will be put out to bid soon; the item will be reviewed by the Board beforehand. 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Al Marquez of Joshua Tree commented that he would have liked for the third applicant for the director 

position to be interviewed at a future meeting. 
 
10. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT  
GM Guzzetta had nothing further to report. 
 
11. DIRECTOR COMMENTS/REPORTS  
Director Long reported on attending the Mojave Water Agency board meeting where it was announced 

that the water allocation has been increased. Vice President Reynolds reported on attending 
seminars at the Association of California Water Agencies Spring Conference on budget and 
finance, sexual harassment prevention, conservation, water policy and the proposed state water 
bond. Director Wilson commented that the newsletter could have an article on water use by 
Directors.  President Luckman reported on attending the ACWA conference and Joint Powers 
Insurance Authority meetings, noting that ACWA/JPIA has a good online education program. GM 
Guzzetta reported that Hi-Desert Water District will host the “ABCs of Water” in September; the 
topic will be the proposed state water bond. 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 9:03 PM 
MSC Long/Reynolds 4/0 to adjourn the May 19, 2010 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
Respectfully submitted; 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
 
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for June 2, 2010. 

Page 6 of 59



Page 7 of 59



Page 8 of 59



Page 9 of 59



Page 10 of 59



Page 11 of 59



Page 12 of 59



Page 13 of 59



Page 14 of 59



Page 15 of 59



Page 16 of 59



Page 17 of 59



Page 18 of 59



Page 19 of 59



Page 20 of 59



Page 21 of 59



Page 22 of 59



Page 23 of 59



Page 24 of 59



Page 25 of 59



Page 26 of 59



Page 27 of 59



Page 28 of 59



Page 29 of 59



Page 30 of 59



Page 31 of 59



Page 32 of 59



Page 33 of 59



Page 34 of 59



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SHEET 

 
 
Special Meeting of the Board of Directors     June 9, 2010 
 
To:  President and Board of Directors 
From:  Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
 
 
                  
TOPIC: Consider Approval of Resolution Authorizing Signers with US Bank 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 10-XXX  

 
ANALYSIS: This is a routine item, required since we have a new Board member.  

The attached resolution removes the outgoing board member and 
adds the new board member and is required before the bank will 
prepare new signature cards.   
 
The resolution authorizes all Board members, the General Manager 
and Assistant General Manager/Controller to sign checks.  Current 
practice is to require two signatures up to $5,000 and three signatures 
when the check exceeds that amount.   
 
Once signature cards are prepared we will need multiple signatures 
from every authorized signer.   
 
 

 

Page 35 of 59



RESOLUTION #10-XXX 

RESOLUTION 10-XXX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

AUTHORIZING SIGNERS AT US BANK 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Joshua Basin Water District requires bank accounts in 
order to conduct its business. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the District allows any of the 
following three acting together in excess of $5,000 or any two at $5,000 or less, 
to withdraw funds from any account in the form of checks in any manner as shall 
be agreed upon by the contracting officers with US Bank: 
 
   Mickey Luckman 
   Mike Reynolds 
   Bill Long 
   Steven Whitman 
   Gary Wilson 
   Joseph Guzzetta 
   Susan Greer 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVED that any one of the preceding is allowed to transfer 
funds between the District’s account and the Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF) or from one District account to another District account only. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution replaces all prior 
Resolutions regarding this matter and shall remain in force until notice of 
revocation of it by this District shall be received by Bank at the office where the 
account is maintained or as Banks shall otherwise direct. 
 
 ADOPTED this 9th day of June, 2010. 
 
 
 
      By ______________________________ 
       Mickey Luckman, President 
 
 
 
      Attest ___________________________ 
       Joseph Guzzetta, Secretary 

Page 36 of 59



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SHEET 

 
 

Special Meeting of the Board of Directors       June 9, 2010 
 
 
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
From:  Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
 
TOPIC: RESOLUTION CELEBRATING THE 50TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE 

MOJAVE WATER AGENCY 
 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Board adopt a resolution congratulating the Mojave 
Water Agency on its 50th anniversary of formation. 
 

ANALYSIS: The Mojave Water Agency (MWA) will celebrate its 50th 
anniversary of formation on July 21, 2010. 
 
MWA has been a very important partner with Joshua Basin 
Water District in bringing recharge water to Joshua Tree.  It 
has also assisted in funding several conservation programs 
such as the landscape templates, Joshua Tree Landscape 
Demonstration Garden, landscape workshops, and supplies for 
special events. 
 
The resolution recognizes this special partnership. 
 

 

Page 37 of 59



1                                                   RESOLUTION  #10-XXX 

 
 

RESOLUTION 10-XXX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ACKNOWLEDGING MOJAVE WATER AGENCY FOR ACHIEVING ITS GOLDEN 

ANNIVERSARY, 50 YEARS SERVING THE HIGH DESERT  
AS A STATE WATER CONTRACTOR 

 
WHEREAS, Mojave Water Agency was created by an Act of the California Legislature 

in 1959; and 

WHEREAS, a Special Election was held within MWA’s service area where voters 
ratified the decision of the Legislature to create the Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Agency is to “do any and every act necessary to be done 
so that sufficient water may be available for any present or future beneficial use of the lands and 
inhabitants of the agency…”; and 

WHEREAS, Mojave Water Agency has excelled in meeting its mission: “to manage the 
region’s water resources for the common benefit to assure stability in the sustained use by the 
citizens [it] serves”; and 

WHEREAS, Mojave Water Agency has proven to be a valued and vital partner of the 
Joshua Basin Water District in our mutual endeavors; and 

WHEREAS, Mojave Water Agency created the Alliance for Water Awareness and 
Conservation of which Joshua Basin Water District is a member agency; and 

WHEREAS, the Alliance for Water Awareness and Conservation and Mojave Water 
Agency have partnered with Joshua Basin Water District in the creation of projects to encourage 
water conservation such as the residential landscape templates and the “Joshua Tree Water-Wise 
Demonstration Garden”; and 

WHEREAS, Mojave Water Agency has made a financial commitment to Joshua Basin 
Water District’s Recharge Pond and Pipeline Project, a project of critical importance to the 
District’s water supply and continued high water quality; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Joshua Basin Water District Board 
of Directors hereby commends current and past Board members and staff of Mojave Water 
Agency for their dedication, cooperation, and support providing water to serve the diverse needs 
within the Agency’s 4,900 square mile boundary. 

We wish the Mojave Water Agency’s Board of Directors and staff much success as they 
work cooperatively with other public and private sector entities to ensure a sustainable water 
supply for our present and future needs. Surviving 50-years is an auspicious occasion and 
testament to the commitment, fiscal responsibility, and innovation shown by MWA to survive 
the challenges to effectively serve its customers 

ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2010. 

          By  ___________________________ 
Mickey Luckman, President 

 
      Attest ___________________________ 
       Joe Guzzetta, Board Secretary 

Page 38 of 59



Page 39 of 59



Page 40 of 59



Page 41 of 59



Page 42 of 59



Page 43 of 59



Page 44 of 59



Page 45 of 59



Page 46 of 59



Page 47 of 59



Page 48 of 59



Page 49 of 59



Page 50 of 59



Page 51 of 59



Page 52 of 59



Page 53 of 59



Page 54 of 59



Page 55 of 59



Page 56 of 59



Page 57 of 59



Page 58 of 59



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SHEET 

 
 
Special Meeting of the Board of Directors     June 9, 2010 
 
To:  President and Board of Directors 
From:  Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
 
 
                  
TOPIC: STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP 

 
RECOMMENDATION: That the Board set a date for the annual strategic planning workshop 

and authorize staff to retain a facilitator to assist in the planning 
process, at a cost not to exceed $2,500. 
 

ANALYSIS: Due to scheduling difficulties the Board did not conduct a strategic 
planning workshop last year to outline its direction and goals.  Prior to 
that the District used a facilitator for several years and has found that 
having an objective professional conduct the planning results in a very 
streamlined and collaborative plan that is supported by the majority of 
the Board. 
 
It would be very appropriate for the current Board to conduct a 
strategic planning workshop to identify the overall direction and 
priorities of the District, since the Board as constituted has never done 
so.  The Board could also wait until the November election; however, 
it would be nearly a year from now before a new Board could likely 
hold an effective planning session. 
 
The Board has used Pat Caldwell for the planning workshop in the 
past.  If she is agreeable to the Board staff will arrange the workshop. 
 
 
 

 

Page 59 of 59




